

INFINITY Site Manager

Getting Started Guide

June 2003

Copyright 2003 by Web-Point Communications All rights reserved.

The information in this document is confidential and proprietary. No further disclosure shall be made without permission from Web-Point Communications. Web-Point Communications believes that the information in this document is accurate and reliable. However, we assume no responsibility for its use, nor for any infringements of patents or other rights of third parties resulting from its use. We reserve the right to make changes at any time without notice.

Web-Point Communications

Table of Contents

1 - Getting Started	1
Introduction	1
Step 1: Log in to Your Infinity Web Site	2
Step 2: Change Your Login Password and Add Other Change Password Add New Logins	Logins3
Step 3: Verify and Update License and Site Information License Information Site Information	
Step 4: Enter Your Alert Group Addresses	7
Step 5: Review and Customize Report Schedules	
Step 6: Copy One Site Configuration to Another	11
Step 7: Completing Initial Setup	
Step 8: Disable Any Undesired Events Determine the Origin of the Event Disable the Event	
Step 9: Configure iFleet Reporting Module	
A - APPENDIX	17

1 - Getting Started

Introduction

This guide provides the minimum steps necessary for you to start receiving the benefits of your Infinity[™] Services. Reference the *Infinity Overview and Applications Manual* or the Infinity online help to learn more about the Infinity Services operation, features, and advanced applications.

It is helpful if you complete these steps *before* connecting your site equipment. Then, when you connect your site equipment to the Internet, your Infinity services will be immediately operational. It will also help you determine if everything is set up correctly at the site.

When you contract with Gasboy for Infinity Services, you will receive an Infinity License Registration Email. Your introductory Email includes your Gasboy Infinity customer number, your Site License number, your Login, your password, your server URL, and your Infinity root password. You need to retain this information for future reference, so it is recommended that you store an electronic copy or make a hard copy of this Email and store it in a safe location.

Using the information in the Email, you can set up your Infinity services using any PC that has Internet access (using Internet Explorer, version 5 or above or Netscape, version 4.73 to 5.5).

The Infinity software has an online help feature to answer your questions as you learn the system. Most pages have a **Help** link in the upper righthand corner. Help pages can be printed using one of the following procedures:

With Internet Explorer

- 1. Right click on the help page.
- 2. Choose Print.

With Netscape

- 1. Display the help page.
- 2. Click SHOW NAVIGATION.
- 3. Right click on the help page.
- 4. Choose Open Frame in New Window.
- 5. On the File menu, choose Print.
- 6. To exit, on the File menu, choose Close.

There are 7 required steps to follow when setting up your Infinity system, plus one more to allow you to custom tailor the system to your needs. These steps are summarized below and described in detail on the pages that follow:

- Step 1: Log in to Your Infinity Web Site
- Step 2: Change Your Login Password and Add Other Logins
- Step 3: Verify and Update License and Site Information
- Step 4: Enter Your Alert Group Addresses
- Step 5: Review and Customize Report Schedules
- Step 6: Copy One Site Configuration to Another
- Step 7: Complete Initial Setup
- Step 8: Disable Any Unwanted Events
- Step 9: Configure iFleet Reporting Module (if applicable)
- *NOTE:* After you have set up your first Infinity site (assuming you are using the same logins and alert groups with subsequent sites) you need only follow Steps 1, 3, 6, 7, and 8.

Step 1: Log in to Your Infinity Web Site

- 1. In the Email from Gasboy, locate your login name and password.
- 2. To access the Infinity server, type the following URL into your browser's Location or Address window:

https://infinity.gasboy.net

NOTE: Be sure you type https, not http in your browser's Address window.

_					
Infinity Customer Logi	n - Microsoft Interne	t Explorer			_ 8 ×
<u>File E</u> dit <u>V</u> iew F <u>a</u> ve	orites <u>T</u> ools <u>H</u> elp				<u>1</u>
↔ → Back Forward	- 🗭 🕼 Stop Refres	h Home Search	Favorites History	Mail Print	Edit Messenger
Address 🙋 https://infinity.	gasboy.net				🔹 🧬 Go 🛛 Links 🎽
<i>Infinity</i> Softw	vare	Custom Login Name: newu Password: room Logi Forgotten	er Login ser@yoursite.com n .Password?		Version: 1.0.05
(@]					📩 🥶 Internet

- 3. At Login Name, type the login name provided by Gasboy. *Hint: This is the Email address that you provided when you ordered your system.*
- 4. At **Password**, type the password supplied by Gasboy.
- 5. Click Login. Your Site Status page should appear. The Site Status page is your Infinity Home Page to view and access your active sites, access Infinity configuration, your report archive, and Infinity site information.



Step 2: Change Your Login Password and Add Other Logins

For security reasons, it is recommended that you change your factory password. You can also enter in information for other users of the system.

Change Password

1. On the Site Status page, click **Infinity Site Information**. The Site List Lookup Results page shows all the sites for which you have purchased licenses.

💐 Results for Cu	stomer #: updated c	ustomer nur	n - Microso	ft Intern	et Explorer					
	w F <u>a</u> vorites <u>T</u> ools	<u>H</u> elp								
Back Fi	⇒ - ⊗ orward Stop	🔔 Refresh	Home	Q Search	Favorites	3 History	Mail	Print	⊡ Edit	• 😤 » Messenger
Address 🙋 https:	://infinity.gasboy.net/cu	stomers/listcust	omers.php						•	∂Go ∐Links ≫
Infinity S	Software									
				Site	List					
	L	ookup Res	ults for C	ustome	er #: upda	ted_custo	omer_num			
		Belogo	Petroleu	m Inc u	pdated cu	stomer ni	m			
	Configuration St	atus <u>Site</u>	License #	S	ite Name	Expira	ation Date	Detai	1	
	NEW		iTest	1	Fest Site			Detai	1	
	NEW		iNew		New			Detai	1	
	NEW	G	222222	Li	ab Site Ⅱ	09/	30/2002	Detai	1	
	NEW	G	333333	La	ab Site III	10/	31/2006	Detai	1	
			Return	to <i>Infin</i>	<i>tity</i> Site S	tatus	Click	horo		
			Mana	ao Emr	lovee T o	rins K		ner e		
			<u>141ana</u>	ge Emp	10106 10					•
@]) 🥝 Inter	met

- 2. On the Site List Lookup page, click **Manage Employee Logins**. The Login Maintenance page shows the login that was set up for your account.
- 3. Click on the radio button next to your Email address, then click Change. The Login Maintenance detail page appears.

🖉 Login Maintenance - Microsoft Inte	rnet Explorer		
∫ <u>F</u> ile <u>E</u> dit <u>V</u> iew F <u>a</u> vorites <u>T</u> ools	<u>H</u> elp		
Back Forward Stop	Refresh Home	😧 主 🧭 🛃 - 🤤 Search Favorites History Mail F	Print Edit Messenger
🛛 Address 🙋 https://infinity.gasboy.net/ad	nin/editgroup.php		▼ 🖉 Go 🛛 Links ≫
	Login	Maintenance	
	First Name:	jane	
	Last Name:	public	
	Department:	customer	
	Email Address:	newuser@yoursite.com	
	Confirm Email:	newuser@yoursite.com	
	Password:		
	Confirm Password:		
	Admin. Rights:	Full	
	3	Save Cancel	_
	Return to N	<u> Ianage Employee Logins</u>	
E			📋 📋 😂 Internet

4. At **Password**, type the new password you would like to use to log in to Infinity Services. At **Confirm Password**, re-type the password to verify it was entered correctly. Click Save when finished. The Login Maintenance page reappears.

Add New Logins

At this time, you can enter information for any other employees that will need access to the Infinity system.

- 1. On the Login Maintenance page, click Add.
- 2. Enter the following user information, then click Save.

First name (up to 35 characters)

Last name (up to 35 characters)

Department (optional; up to 50 characters)

Email address (up to 70 characters)

Password (up to 20 characters)

Admin Rights

Admin rights limits user access to the system.

- **Read-Only** allows them to view sites and configurations but they can't edit or add anything.
- **Operator** allows them access to edit Infinity Configurations but will not allow them to add, edit, or delete logins.
- Full allows complete access to sites, configurations, and logins as well as the ability to add, edit, or delete them.

Step 3: Verify and Update License and Site Information

License Information

1. On the Login Maintenance page, click on **Return to Customer # Lookup Results**. The Site List Lookup Results page appears.

🗿 Besults for Cus	tomer #: undated_cu	stomer num - Microsoft	Internet Explorer			a x
<u> </u>	v F <u>a</u> vorites <u>T</u> ools	Help				
 Back Fo	→ → ⊗ irward Stop	Refresh Home S	iearch Favorites	Image: Second	Print Edit	• 🚊 » Messenger
Address 🙋 https:.	//infinity.gasboy.net/cust	omers/listcustomers.php				▪ ⊘Go Links ≫
Infinity S	oftware					
		5	Site List			
	Lo	okup Results for Cu	istomer #: upda	ted_customer_num	Click here	e
		Belogo Petroleum	Inc updated cu	stomer num		
	Configuration Sta	tus Site License #	Site Name	Expiration Date	Detail	
	ACTIVE	iTest	Test		Detail	
	ACTIVE	iNew	New		Detail	
	ACTIVE	G222222	Lab Site II	08/01/2002	Detail	
	ACTIVE	G333333	Lab Site III	10/31/2006	<u>Detail</u>	
		<u>Return to</u> Manag	o <i>Infinity</i> Site S e Employee Log	<u>tatus</u>		
ا ا					- <u> </u>	nternet

2. Click on your customer number at the top of the table to display the License Registration Customer Information page.

<u>File E</u> dit <u>V</u> iew F <u>a</u>	vorites <u>T</u> ools <u>H</u> elp								
↔ → Back Forward	Stop Refree	sh Home	Q Search	Favorites	3 History	<mark>Inail</mark> ▼ Mail	Print	Edit -	Messenger
Address 🙋 https://infinit	y.gasboy.net/customers/	/editcustomer.php						•	i∂Go ∐Link
		Lice	ise Ro	egistra	tion				
		Cu	stomer]	Informatio	n				
	GASBOY	Customer #:	upda	ted_custo	mer_num				
	Company 1	Jame:	Belo	go Petrole	um Inc				
	Company A	Address 1:	1234	Broad Stre	eet				
	Company A	Address 2:							
	Billing Cont	act Name:	Irina	Katalina					
	City:		Lans	dale					
	State:		Pen	nsylvania	*				
	Zip:		1944	6					
	Phone #:		2155	551212		-	=ntor th	a nath	for
	Fax #:		2155	551213		ء \ م	inter u /our lo	ao arar	blic
	Email Addr	ess:	newu	iser@mysi	te.com	۲ i	nere.	9- 9. «r	
	Logo Uploa	ad:	c:\my	/coollogo.j	pg	Browse			
	Table Colo	r.	white	•	-				

- 3. Check any entered customer information and make any additions or changes. Accurate billing contact names and telephone numbers are important in case we need to contact you about your account.
- 4. If you wish, you can load your company's logo so it will display in the upper lefthand corner of your Infinity pages. The file must be either a GIF or JPG format. To select the proper file

scroll to the **Logo Upload** field. Click **Browse** navigate to the directory and click on the file. The file's path and name is shown.

5. If you have made any changes, click UPDATE. Otherwise, click Customer # Lookup Results to return to the Site List Lookup Results page.

Site Information

- 6. On the Site List Lookup Results page, in the **Configuration Status** column, scroll to the desired site and click **Active**. The Site Information page appears.
- 7. On the Site Information page, do the following:
 - At the **Site Name** field, change the site name to your desired description. Complete the rest of the fields as desired. Consult the online help if you are not sure what to enter in a field.
 - At any of the service modules you have licensed, verify that your **iTank**, **iSite**, and **iTran** types are correct and that the **Export** box next to them is checked.
 - At Connection Type, verify that the information shown is correct.
 - When you are finished, click UPDATE.
 - At Video Type, verify that the information shown is correct. The default is None; set to Axis if you have a camera.
 - Follow the same procedure for any additional sites you are initiating.

A sample site information page might look like the following:

8. Back on the Lookup Results page, click on **Detail** and verify the site license and billing

🗧 Site Setup - M	licrosoft Inter	met Expl	orer					- 8
<u> </u>	w F <u>a</u> vorites	<u>T</u> ools	Help					
Address 🙋 https	://infinity.gasbo	y.net/cu:	stomers/sitesetup.php	?license=G222222			•	∂Go ∐Links
			S	ite Informa	tion			
			GASBOY C	ustomer #: update	l_customer	_num		
			Site License #	ŧ: G22222	2			
		S	ite Name:	Lab Site II				
		S	ite Number:	9991				
		S	ite Address:	1234 Main Street				
		S	ite Address 2:					
		C	ity:	Yourtown				
		S	tate:	Pennsylvania	•			
		Z	ip:	12345				
		P	hone #:	555-555-1234				
		D	ays of History:	90				
		iΊ	'ank Type:	VEEDER ROOT 35	0 •	🗹 Export		
		iS	ite Type:	SITE CONTROLLE	RII 💌	🗹 Export		
		ίΊ	'ran Type:	SITE CONTROLLE	R II iTran 💌	Export Export		
		С	onnection Type:	Generic Dial-In or D	SL 💌			
		V	ideo Type:	None	*			
Done							🔒 🤗 Inter	net

information set up for your site. You cannot change this information. If you find an error, contact Gasboy Customer Service at 1-800-444-5579. Please have your customer number and site license number available.

9. Click the **Return to Customer # Lookup Results** link. Repeat this procedure for any additional sites you are initiating. Then, on the Site List Lookup Results page, click the **Return to Infinity Site Status** link.

Step 4: Enter Your Alert Group Addresses

Alert groups contain the Email addresses, or pager/phone messaging addresses of the people you wish to notify when events occur at your fueling site. A set of alert groups have already been pre-defined into your system and assigned to various events. When these events occur, the system will notify anyone who is listed in the assigned event group.



The pre-defined alert groups are listed in the Appendix of this manual and explained in the online help topic Default Alert Groups. As you enter addresses into the various alert groups, refer to the appendix at the back of this manual so you can determine which people to list in each group.

Example: In the Delivery alert group you should be entering the addresses of your employees who need to know when a delivery is made or want a copy of the iTank delivery report.

Alert Group	Who should be here	What causes alert
Delivery	People who need to know when a delivery is made or those who want a copy of the iTank delivery report.	Event type: Delivery

NOTE: As you become more familiar with the system, you can enter your own alert groups, change the event assignments, etc. by referring to the online help.

- 1. On the Site Status page, click Infinity Configuration.
- 2. When the Infinity Configuration Menu appears, click on the arrow to the right of the entry box labeled Site. All of your registered sites will appear in the dropdown entry box. Click on the site you wish to configure and click Load

_		
iSite Administration - Microsoft	nternet Explorer	_ <u>-</u>
<u>File E</u> dit <u>V</u> iew F <u>a</u> vorites <u>T</u> o	ols <u>H</u> elp	100 - 100 - 100 - 100 - 100 - 100 - 100 - 100 - 100 - 100 - 100 - 100 - 100 - 100 - 100 - 100 - 100 - 100 - 100
↓	🗈 🗳 🧕 🖬 🎯 🖪-	🧿 🗹 . 2. "
Back Forward Stop	Refresh Home Search Favorites History Mail	Print Edit Messenger
Address 🥙 https://infinity.gasboy.ne	/customers/testme.php	💌 🧬 Go 🛛 Links *
	Infinity Configuration Mon	
	<i>Injutary</i> Configuration Menu	•
	Site Currently Selected	
	Site Guitenny Selected.	
	City, Lab Site II 🚽 Load	
	Site. Edu Site ii	
	Common Configuration	1
	Alert Groups	
	Event Groups	
	Report Schedules	
	Camera Setup	
	Hold File Setup	
	iSite Configuration	
	Event Notification	
	Report Management	
1	iTank Configuration	
1	Event Notification	
1	Report Management	
1	iTran Configuration	
	Event Notification	
e]		🔒 🥝 Internet

NOTE: If site that you wish to configure appears as "not active" in the dropdown entry box, it means the site's data needs to be set up at the Site Information page.

3. On the Infinity Configuration Menu, click on Alert Groups.

4. Start with the first alert group listed and refer to the descriptions in the Appendix of this manual or the online help to determine if you wish to enter any addresses in that alert group. If you wish to add an address, click the radio button next to the desired alert group and click Change. The examples shown use the **crash** group.



Augustation - Microsoft Inter	net Explorer	-	
File Edit View Favorites Tools H	elo		
J	efresh Home	Search Favorites History Mail	Print Edit Messenger
Address 🙋 https://infinity.gasboy.net/custon	ners/alertgroupmls.php?c	lb=G222222&number=z_updated_customer_nu	m&sfn=1&fl=0 🔗 Go 🛛 Links ≫
	Ale	rt Groups site: Lab Site II	×
	Alert Group	Email Addresses	
	C [NONE]		
	C contractor	joefixit@mycompany.com	
	🖲 crash	joefixit@mycompany.com	
	C customerservice	joefixit@mycompany.com AnitaRepair@FuelsRun.com	
	O dailyreport	joefixit@mycompany.com	
		joefixit@mycompany.com AnitaBenair@FuelsRun.com	
	O lowproduc	joëfixit@my wy	
	O paper	joefixit@mycompany.com	
Prev.	Add Change	Delete Next Page: 1/2 Record	ds: 23
Click here	Return to Inj	finity Configuration Menu	_
¢			🔒 🎯 Internet

5. Type the email address or pager/phone messaging addresses anyone you wish to add to the group. Add each address on a separate line by pressing return at the end of each email address.



6. Click Save. To cancel without saving, click Cancel

- 7. Continue through the rest of the alert groups while referencing the appendix, and add addresses to any of the alert groups which are assigned to events for which you or your employees wish to be notified when they occur.
- 8. When you are finished with alert groups, click **Return to Infinity Configuration.**

Step 5: Review and Customize Report Schedules



The Report Schedules feature allows you to set up a schedule for reports that will run on the iSite and iTank modules of the Infinity system. All reports are archived, and you can specify them to be delivered to employees automatically (using the Reports Management feature). If you have the iTank module, a group of tank gauge reports are pre-set up in your report schedule.

1. On the Infinity Configuration Menu, click **Report Schedules** to view existing report entries and see if you want the reports at different times.

Time is specified in the **Minutes** and **Hours** columns. Time for Minutes is specified as minutes after the hour in a 2 digit format (00-59). Separate multiple entries with commas. For example, if you want the report to run every 15 minutes, you would enter 15,30,45,00. Time for Hours is specified in 24-hour format of 00-23. Separate multiple entries with commas (00,06,12,18).

Dates and days for reports are specified in the **Day of Month**, **Month**, **and Day of Week** columns. Valid entries for **Day of Month** are from 0-31. Valid entries for **Month** are 1-12 or the three character abbreviation (JAN, FEB, MAR, APR, MAY, JUN, JUL, AUG, SEP, OCT, NOV, DEC) Valid entries for **Day of Week** are 1-7 or the three character abbreviation (MON, TUE, WED, THU, FRI, SAT, SUN)

Repeating times or days can be specified with the asterisk character and ranges of time or days/dates can also be specified. See the online help topic **Time, Date, and Day Specifications** for more details.

2. To change the contents of a report column, click the radio button next to the schedule entry you wish to change. To locate the schedule entry you wish to change, use **Prev** and **Next** buttons or use the Search feature. Follow the directions in the online help to use the Search feature.

Stop Refer home Search Favorite Hitory Mai Pint Edit Messenger Back Intra. //Infinity gasbooy net/customers/schedulemits phy?db=G222222trunbers_updated_custome_runt Imai Pint Edit Messenger Click the radio button of the report to change For site: Lab Site II report to change For site: Lab Site II report to change System Uppe Report Minutes Hours Day of Month Month Day of Week VEEDER ROOT 350 VR Active Alarm Report 00,05,10,15,20,25,30,35,40,45,50,55 * * * VEEDER ROOT 350 VR In Tank Inventory ROOT 350 00 * * * VEEDER ROOT 350 VR In Tank Delivery Report 13 00 * * VEEDER ROOT 350 VR In Tank Leak Test ROOT 350 01 1,15 * * VEEDER ROOT 350 VR CSLD Test Results 13 01 1,15 * * VEEDER ROOT 350 VR Pressure Line Leak Test ROOT 350 23 Then, click here 01 1,15 * VEEDER ROOT 350 VR CSLD Test Results 13 01 1,15 <	ile <u>E</u> dit ⊻iew F	<u>a</u> vorites <u>T</u> ools <u>H</u> elp					
System Type Report Minutes Hours Day of Month Month Day of Week System Type Report Minutes Hours Day of Month Month Day of Week NOT 350 VR Active Alarm Report 00,05,10,15,20,25,30,35,40,45,50,55 * * * VEEDER ROOT 350 VR In Tank Inventory Report 03 00 * * * VEEDER ROOT 350 VR In Tank Leak Test ROOT 350 03 01 1,15 * * VEEDER ROOT 350 VR CSLD Test Results 13 01 1,15 * * VEEDER ROOT 350 VR CSLD Test Results 13 01 1,15 * * VEEDER ROOT 350 VR Pressure Line Leak Test ROOT 350 23 Then, click here 01 1,15 * VEEDER ROOT 350 VR CSLD Test Results 13 01 1,15 * * VEEDER ROOT 350 History (with .20 test data) 23 Then, click here 01 1,15 *	Back Forward	Stop Refresh Hor	he Search Favorites History	<mark>}</mark> - Mail	int 🔄	Edit -	
Report Schedules Click the radio button of the report to change System Type Report For site: Lab Site II report to change Network Month Month Month May of Month VEEDER ROOT 350 VR Active Alarm Report 00,05,10,15,20,25,30,35,40,45,50,55 * * * VEEDER ROOT 350 VR In Tank Inventory Report 03 00 * * * VEEDER ROOT 350 VR In Tank Delivery Report 13 00 * * * VEEDER ROOT 350 VR In Tank Leak Test ROOT 350 03 01 1,15 * * VEEDER ROOT 350 VR CSLD Test Results 13 01 1,15 * * VEEDER ROOT 350 VR Pressure Line Leak Test ROOT 350 23 Then, click here 01 1,15 * Prev Add Delete Nex Page: 1/1 Records: 6	dress 🙋 https://infin	ity.gasboy.net/customers/schedules	mls.php?db=G22222&number=z_updated_custor	ner_num		•	ç≫ Go ∐ Link
System Type Report Minutes Hours Day of Month Month Day of Week VEEDER ROOT 350 VR Active Alarm Report 00,05,10,15,20,25,30,35,40,45,50,55 * * * * VEEDER ROOT 350 VR In Tank Inventory Report 03 00 * * * C VEEDER ROOT 350 VR In Tank Leventory Report 03 00 * * * C VEEDER ROOT 350 VR In Tank Leak Test ROOT 350 03 01 1,15 * * C VEEDER ROOT 350 VR CSLD Test Results 13 01 1,15 * * C VEEDER ROOT 350 VR Pressure Line Leak Test ROOT 350 23 Then, click here Next 01 1,15 * *		Re Click the radio button of the report to chan	Port Schedules For site: Lab Site II ge				
VEEDER ROOT 350 VR Active Alarm Report 00,05,10,15,20,25,30,35,40,45,50,55 * <	System Type	<u>Report</u>	Minutes	Hours	Day of Month	Month	Day of Week
VEEDER ROOT 350 VR In Tank Inventory Report 03 00 * * * VEEDER ROOT 350 VR In Tank Delivery Report 13 00 * * * VEEDER ROOT 350 VR In Tank Leak Test History Report 03 01 1,15 * * VEEDER ROOT 350 VR CSLD Test Results 13 01 1,15 * * VEEDER ROOT 350 VR CSLD Test Results 13 01 1,15 * * VEEDER ROOT 350 VR Pressure Line Leak Test History (with .20 test data) 23 Then, click here Next 01 1,15 * *	O ROOT 350	VR Active Alarm Report	00,05,10,15,20,25,30,35,40,45,50,55	;*	*	*	*
VEEDER ROOT 350 VR In Tank Delivery Report 13 00 * * * VEEDER ROOT 350 VR In Tank Leak Test ROOT 350 03 01 1,15 * * VEEDER ROOT 350 VR CSLD Test Results 13 01 1,15 * * VEEDER ROOT 350 VR CSLD Test Results 13 01 1,15 * * VEEDER ROOT 350 VR Pressure Line Leak Test ROOT 350 13 01 1,15 * * VEEDER ROOT 350 VR Pressure Line Leak Test History (with 20 test data) 23 Then, click here Next 01 1,15 * *	O VEEDER ROOT 350	VR In Tank Inventory Report	03	00	*	*	*
VEEDER ROOT 350 VR In Tank Leak Test History Report 03 01 1,15 * * VEEDER ROOT 350 VR CSLD Test Results 13 01 1,15 * * VEEDER ROOT 350 VR CSLD Test Results 13 01 1,15 * * VEEDER ROOT 350 VR Pressure Line Leak Test History (with .20 test data) 23 Then, click here Next 01 1,15 * *	VEEDER ROOT 350	VR In Tank Delivery Report	13	00	*	*	*
VEEDER ROOT 350 VR CSLD Test Results 13 01 1,15 * * VEEDER ROOT 350 VR Pressure Line Leak Test History (with .20 test data) 23 Then, click here 01 1,15 * *	VEEDER ROOT 350	VR In Tank Leak Test History Report	03	01	1,15	*	*
VEEDER ROOT 350 VR Pressure Line Leak Test History (with .20 test data) 23 Then, click here 01 1,15 * * Prev Add Change Delete Next Page: 1/1 Records: 6	VEEDER ROOT 350	VR CSLD Test Results	13	01	1,15	*	*
Prev Add Change Delete Next Page: 1 / 1 Records: 6	O VEEDER ROOT 350	VR Pressure Line Leak Test History (with .20 test data)	²³ Then, click here	01	1,15	*	*
		Prev Add Cha	nge Delete Next Page: 1 / 1 H	Records	6		

3. Click Change. The Report Schedules input form displays with its current information.

Infinity Administration - Microsoft Int	ternet Explorer
∫ <u>F</u> ile <u>E</u> dit <u>V</u> iew F <u>a</u> vorites <u>T</u> ools	Help (B)
Back Forward Stop	Refresh Home Search Favorites History Mail Print Edit Messenger
Address 🛃 https://infinity.gasboy.net/cust	tomers/schedulesmls.php 🖸 🖉 Go 🗍 Links ×
	Report Schedules
	For site: Lab Site II
	Tor site. Lab site H
System Type	VEEDER ROOT 350
Report	VR Active Alarm Report
Minutes	00,05,10,15,20,25,30,35,40
Hours	*
Day of Month	1
Month	*
Day of Week	
	Save Cancel
	Return to Infinity Configuration Menu
	<u>Return to Infinity Site Status Menu</u>
é)	🕒 🕒 👔 Internet

- 4. Make any changes you wish.
- 5. When complete, click Save. To cancel without saving, click Cancel.
- 6. When you are finished with reports, click Return to Infinity Configuration Menu.
- 7. If you are setting up more than one site, proceed to Step 6: Copy One Site Configuration to Another. If you are setting up one site only, skip to Step 7: Completing Initial Setup.

Step 6: Copy One Site Configuration to Another

Often, you will want to use the same Alert Groups, Report Schedules, etc. at each of your sites. Once you set up your first Infinity site, you can copy that configuration when you set up additional sites. This saves you the time of reloading the information.

- 1. On the Infinity Site Status page, click **Infinity Configuration.** The Infinity Configuration Menu appears.
- 2. At the **Site:** dropdown box, select the previously set up site from which you wish to copy the configuration and click Load.
- 3. At the bottom of the Infinity Configuration menu click **Copy Site Setup**. The Copy Site Setup page appears.
- 4. Select the site to which you wish to copy the configuration and click Copy Site. The configuration will be duplicated.
 - NOTE: Even though your sites may have different equipment installed (e.g. Site Controller II vs. Site Controller III), it is still much faster to use the copy feature if you are using the same Alert Groups at both sites. If your equipment differs, the system will prompt you if you wish to continue. If you select **Yes**, everything is copied. When you view the event groups, the **System Type** will read the same as the equipment of the site you copied. By selecting the proper types on the Site Information page, clicking the **Export** checkbox, and then clicking **UPDATE**, you can change these to the proper system type.

Step 7: Completing Initial Setup

The system is now ready to function as designed. Once your site equipment is connected, you will start receiving notifications of events when they occur. Some event notifications you will probably not wish to receive. For example, if your site controller is configured for pumps that are not there, you will receive notification that these pumps are disabled. You can eliminate the generation of these unwanted notifications by following the procedures in Step 8. In some cases, you can also correct the configuration in your site controller to eliminate the original message that created the notification. You will need to "tweak" your Infinity system over the following days and weeks to fit your operation and interests. Some of the changes may be the simple items explained in Step 8, and others may require referencing the Infinity Online Help.

Step 8: Disable Any Undesired Events

If you have an event that you do not wish to be notified about, either temporarily or at any time, you must first determine what originated the notification in order to go to the correct place to disable it. In most cases, the message will be from one of the following sources:

- Site controller log file (what use to print on the site logger printer)
- Site controller diagnostic report
- Tank gauge reports

In many instances, the same messages may be reported in the site controller log file and the diagnostic report, so there may be two sources. To verify the source(s), you can check the actual outputs through the Infinity system. If you know the source(s) of the message, skip to **Disable the Event**.

Determine the Origin of the Event

 On the Infinity Site Status page, click on the site name or site license number of the site in question. When the security alert box appears, click on Yes. When the Enter Network Password box appears, type the Site License Number (e.g. G123456) in the User Name box, type gasboy in the Password box and press ENTER. The Infinity Main Menu appears.

J Ele Edit View Favorites Icols Helo Link	«s » 🌆			
Infinity Main Menu	*			
US Fleet #0983				
Infinity Site Status all Current Image Local Configuration				
iSite				
Current Journal File				
Drowse rustory				
[NONE] Last Report				
Run Command				
iTank				
Browse History				
VR WPLLD Line Leak Test History Run Report				
Turn Tetranet Authorization				
Current Log				
Browse History				
View Data Files From Host				
I Infinity Data Files Last Imported: Mon September 16 2002 05:07:02 PM EDT	<u> </u>			

- 2. Check the log file: If the message is from today, you can check whether the event occurred in the log file by clicking on Current Journal File in the iSite section. The current day's log file will appear. If the message is from a prior day, click Browse History to view archived reports. Log files are identified by log.mmddyy.html where mmddyy is the date. Click on the desired report to view the report.
 - *NOTE:* You can search the log by using your browser's Find feature. Click on Edit on the browser top menu bar and then click Find or Find in Page and enter the desired text.

🎒 Main Menu - Micro	osoft Internet Explorer	_ 8 >
<u> </u>	F <u>a</u> vorites <u>T</u> ools <u>H</u> elp	🛛 Links 🌺 🌆
	Infinity Main Menu	2
	US Fleet #0983	
Click here	Infinity Site Status all Current Image Local Configuration	
	iSite	
	Current Journal File Browse History	
Click here	[NONE] _ Last Report	
for another day	Run Command	
	iTank Browse History	
	VR WPLLD Line Leak Test History Run Report	
	iTran Internet Authorization	
	Current Log Browse History	
	View Data Files From Host	
		-
	Infinity Data Files Last Imported: Mon September 16 2002 05:07:02 PM EDT	
e	j j j 🖉 h	nternet

- 3. Check the diagnostic report: If the message is from today, you can check whether the event occurred in the diagnostic report by clicking on the Last Report drop down box arrow in the iSite section. Click on CMD Diagnostic and then click on Last Report button. The latest diagnostic report appears. If the message is from a previous report, click on Browse History to view archived reports. Diagnostic reports are identified by xxxxmmdd .DIG where xxxx is the site number and mmdd is date. Look in the last modified column to see the date and time of the report. Click on the desired report to view the report.
 - *NOTE:* You can search the log by using your browser's Find feature. Click on Edit on the browser top menu bar and then click Find or Find in Page and enter the desired text.



4. Now you should know the origin(s) of the event and you can proceed to disable the event.

Disable the Event

- 1. At the Infinity Main Menu page, click on Infinity Site Status.
- 2. On the Infinity Site Status page, click on **Infinity Configuration**. The Infinity Configuration Menu appears.
- 3. Select your desired site in the Site: dropdown box, and click Load
- 4. Click on **Event Groups**. The Event Group page appears.

🛎 Event Group - Microsoft Internet Ex	plorer				_ 8 ×	
<u>File E</u> dit <u>V</u> iew F <u>a</u> vorites <u>T</u> ools	<u>H</u> elp					
↔ → ∞ Back Forward Stop	Refresh Home S	Q 主 Gearch Favorites	Iistory	ail Print	📝 - 😤 » Edit Messenger	
Address 🙋 https://infinity.gasboy.net/cus	tomers/group.php?db=G333	1333&number=z_update	ed_customer_num		🝷 🧬 Go 🛛 Links 🎽	
Event Group For site: Lab Site III Event Group © loggle © diagnostic © diagnostic						
Return to <i>Infinity</i> Configuration Menu Return to <i>Infinity</i> Site Status Menu						
🖉 Done					j 🔮 Internet	

- 5. Click on the link for the source of the event (e.g. if it was a message in the log file, click on logfile). The events for that group appear.
- 6. On the Events page, to search for the event, click on \overline{V} .
- Click on the dropdown arrow for the Execute Command column and click on the *. The * represents a wildcard. Make sure there are asterisks in all columns so you see all combinations.
- 8. Click on the dropdown arrow in the Event Description column and search for the event you wish to disable. You can use the scroll buttons, scroll bar, or enter the first letter of the event in the box and then click the drop down arrow to see events beginning with that letter. Once you find the desired event, click on it so it displays in the Event Description box.
- 9. Click on the ≥ to search for all of the event types where that event is assigned (it may be more than one).
- 10. Click on the radio button next to the first event type where this event appears and then click on the **Change** button.



- 11. You may now either disable notification of that event until a designated date and time in the future or disable it permanently (until you re-enable it). For example, you may want to temporarily disable a pump #4 disabled event if the pump cannot be fixed right away and you do not want to continue to receive messages while it is waiting to be fixed. You will want to permanently disable events you never wish to receive notification.
- 12. To disable notification of an event until a designated date and time in the future, enter the desired date and time in the Disable Until box. (Follow the information in Online Help for the correct date and time format.) To disable notification permanently, click the drop down arrow in the Disabled box, and click Yes.
- 13. Click the Save button to return to the Events page. If there was more than one Event Type returned with the event search, you will need to disable each of them.
- 14. Follow the same procedure for any other events you wish to disable.
 - *NOTE:* Remember with some site controller events, you may need to disable the event in both the logfile event group and the diagnostic event group because the event may be included in both system outputs.

Step 9: Configure iFleet Reporting Module

After about two days of operations, if you have iTank, you should configure the reporting options for iFleet.

- 1. On the Site Status page, click Infinity Configuration.
- 2. When the Infinity Configuration Menu appears, click on the arrow to the right of the entry box labeled **Site**. All of your registered sites will appear in the dropdown entry box. Click on the site you wish to configure and click Load.

3. On the Infinity Configuration menu, in the **iFleet Configuration** section, click on **Reporting Module Configuration**.

🔋 Tank Reporting Module Configuration - Microsoft Internet Explorer							
<u>File E</u> dit <u>V</u> iew F <u>a</u> vorites <u>T</u> ools <u>H</u> elp							<u> 19</u>
Generation → Stop Refress	h Home	Q 主 Search Favorites	🧭 History	Mail	Print	Edit	Messenger
Address 🛃 https://infinity.gasboy.net/customers/s	ite_config.php?db	=G303030&number=z_f	inall_test_site	*\$			▼ 🔗 Go
<i>iTank</i> Reporting Module Configuration For Site: Site Number Three							
Hours Until Empty Indicator:		Turn red if less tha	an or equa	l to:		24	Hours
		Turn yellow if less to:	than or e	qual		36	Hours
Weeks to use in Averaging Calculations:						6	Weeks
Map iTank Gauge # to iSite Product #:	iTank Tank #	iSite Pro	duct #	τ	Jnusable (Gallons of Tank	Fuel in
No <i>iFleet</i> Data on File Return to <i>byfinity</i> Configuration Menu Return to <i>byfinity</i> Site Status							
La la Internet							

- 4. Reporting Module Configuration allows you to set operating parameters that will be used in the internal calculations within the iFleet reports. Once you set these parameters and click Update, it will take at least a week before you start getting meaningful data in your reports.
 - At **Hours Until Empty Indicator, Turn red if less than or equal to**, enter the number of hours at which you want the indicator (on the site status page or just the reporting page) to show red. The default is 24. This value must be set lower than the "yellow" indicator or an error message will occur.
 - At **Hours Until Empty Indicator, Turn yellow if less than or equal to**, enter the number of hours at which you want the indicator (on the site status page or just the reporting page) to show yellow. The default is 36. This value must be set higher that the "red" indicator or an error message will occur.
 - At Weeks to use in Averaging Calculations, enter the number of week you want the system to use when averaging your transaction history for use with the days to empty and estimated empty dates in the Inventory report.
- 5. After completing these parameters, you will either see a message saying No iFleet Data on File or a series of parameters allowing you to map tanks to iSite product codes.

A - APPENDIX

Alert Group	Who should be here	What causes alert		
NONE	Use when you don't want to be notified of a certain event.			
Contractor	People who need to know when a contractor has been on site for	Event types:		
	security or pump maintenance. Event occurs when specially encoded	Contractalarm		
	used	Contractlandscape		
		Contractpressurewash		
		Contractpumpwash		
		Contractreadings		
		Contractsecurity		
Crash	People who need to know when the system is rebooted or crashes.	Event type:		
		Crash		
Customerservice	People who need to know when customer related issues occur (like PIN	Event type:		
	entry problems or invalid products).	Localtransactions		
Dailyreport	People who would like to receive a daily sales report.	Report management .DL1 report		
Delivery	People who need to know when a delivery is made or who want a copy	Event type:		
	of the iTank delivery report.	Delivery		
Diagfailure	People who need to know when a component fails. Group is alerted only	Event type:		
	when an event is found during the scanning of the Diagnostic report.	Diagfailure		
Diagnostic	People who want to receive a diagnostic report. Normally this group is left blank, since you can view the last report at any time and the system is reviewing it for you.	Checkup and Monthend command files; PR DI report		
Failureandreset	People who need to know when failures and resets occur (like pump #1	Event types:		
	disabled or enabled). Typically contains pager addresses for speedier	Failure		
	notification.	Reset		
Fuelpoint	People who need to know Fuelpoint related statuses.	Event type:		
		Fuelpoint		
Inventory	People who wish to receive inventory reports from the iTank module.	Inventory command		
Itran	People who need reports from iTran module.	Event type:		
		Socket		
Latecontractor	People who need to know if contractors don't arrive at the predetermined time set in Report Management.			
Latereport	People who need to know if a report set up to run doesn't make it to the host. This is typically due to Internet or network connection or site controller being out of service.			
Lowproduct	People who need to know of iTank low product condition.	Event type:		
		Gasboylowproduct		
Paper	People who maintain printer and card reader paper levels. If you don't	Event type:		
	have any receipt printers, leave it blank.	Paper		
Reports	People who wish to receive customized site controller reports.	When .LOG or .TXT reports are detected.		
Standard	People who wish to be notified of minor events, like low battery on SC.	Various command initiated reports		
Techservice	People who need to be notified of technical service issues, such as recurring pump problems, etc. This will mainly be used by GASBOY, ASR, or service companies for trouble shooting.	Event type: Techservice		
Transactions	Typically not used. Might be used for someone who wishes to receive transactions listings.			
Vrcompliance	People who wish to receive reports loaded in Schedules related to iTank compliance reports.			
Week	People who need to receive running pump totals when the card 99999999 is used. Typically a site has its pumps read weekly to verify sales.	Reading command file generates .WEK report.		